
CITY of THE DALLES 

AGENDA 
CI'TY OF THE DALLES 

HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION 
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

313 COURT SREET 
THE DALLES, OREGON 97058 

CONDUCTED IN A HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE MEETING ROOM 

__ ,, SEPTEMBER 13, 2004 
tOK R.M. 

I. Call to order 

II. Roll call 

III. Approval of Agenda 

IV. Approval of Minutes - Not available 

313 COURT STREET 

THE DALLES, OR 97058 

(541) 296-5481 

V. Public comment: The public is invited to comment on any topic that does not 
appear on the agenda. 

VI. Public Hearing: Historic Landmarks Commission Application #85-04 of 
Sunne J. Preston to disinter her Great Grandmother, Mary A. Porter, from the Pioneer 
Cemetery, remove the remains & have them cremated. The cremated remains and the 
headstone will be transported by family members and placed with her Great Grandfather 
Claudius Porter in the Calhoun Cemetery in Harrison County, Iowa. 

VII. Resolution 81-04 

VIII. Commissioner/Staff Comments 

IX. Next meeting date: Wednesday, September 22, 2004 

X. Adjournment 

Historic Landmarks Commission 



Dawn Hert 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

MEYER Mirra [Mirra.Meyer@state.or.us] 
Thursday, September 09, 2004 4:20 PM 
Dawn Hert 
Mary Preston disinterment 

Dawn, this is to affirm that OCHC Commissioners have voted, six out of seven, in with no 
objections to the disinterrment of the remains of Mary A Porter and the removal of her 
headstone for transport to Iowa for reburial. (The seventh OCHC commissioner is apparently 
"on vacation".) OCHC Commissioners did stipulate the following: 1. That complete and 
detailed records be kept in The Dalles and in the "receiving" county in Iowa. 2. That 
appropriate oversight be provided. (I expect to be there and hope you will be also, as 
well as an archaeologist just in case.) 3. That all necessary permits have been obtained. 

A message caIIme in today from another descendent asking for for info. I sent her what I 
had. Perhaps you and I should talk tomorrow? I will be in thie office, after a meeting in 
Portland, by about 10. 

Mirra Meyer 
Oregon Commission on Historic Cemeteries 
State Historic Preservation Office 
503-986-0685 
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From: swett To: City of The Dalles Date: 9/12/2004 Time: 10:24:40 AM 

n 

12 Sept 2004 
Judy Swett SEP l 3 
764 Spring Valley Pkwy 
Spring Creek NV 89815 
775-738-7691 
sciam@citlink.net 

RE: Mary Ann Porter Disinterment from the Pioneer Cemetery 

City of The Dalles 

In light of new information please rescind my previously emailed statement dated 
Sept 10th, 2004. 

Faxed copies of this email will also be sent to: 
The Dalles City Hall at: 1-541-298-5490 
And Ms Mirra Meyer at: 1- 503-986-0793 

Thank you for the opportunity to enter my comments. Please include this email or 
the faxed hard copy, as part of all official records and the public hearing scheduled, in 
regards to the disinterment of Mary Ann Porter from the Pioneer Cemetery. 

I am the Great-great granddaughter of Mary Ann and Claude Porter. As a 
genealogist I first learned of, and visited Mary's grave about 25 years ago, with my two 
young daughters. As bits and pieces of Mary's life have unfolded through the years, I 
have come to respect her and the hardships she surely endured in the hopes of . 
bettering the lives of her 10 children. It is obvious that even 100 years after her death, 
she has affected the lives of her desendants. She has brought at least two family lines 
together in an attempt to appropriately honor her memory, and the dying wish of her 
husband Claude. 

I learned only this week of the impending removal of Mary's remains and her 
headstone. I was shocked, surprised and more than a little dismayed that someone 
wanted to disturb Mary's grave. My sister and I visited, The Dalles a year ago and the 
high point of our trip was visiting Mary's grave and the grave of our Great-grandfather 
Collins who is also buried in The Dalles. It was a moving experience to read and touch 
her stone, which had been so lovingly placed by her husband over a hundred years ago. 
The experience solidified our connections to our Oregon pioneer ancestors and the 
history of The Dalles and our native Oregon. 

While I only speak for myself, I have consulted with a number of other direct 
descendants including my mother and aunts to learn how they feel about Mary's 
disinterment. I have additionally attempted to locate other descendants via the Internet 
in the hopes of obtaining the broadest possible family consensus. With only a couple of 
days - it was impossible to contact or locate even a small portion, of what must surely 
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From: swett To: City of The Dalles Date: 9/12/2004 Time: 10:24:40 AM 

be hundreds or even thousands of descendants. The applicant Sunne Preston and I have 
had several, sometimes emotional, conversations via telephone. Her motives seem 
worthy and honorable and we struggled to find a compromise that would be acceptable 
to all, and still honor the wishes of our ancestors. With the new information however -
that now seems impossible. 

We have newly discovered information that it was not the wish of C.F.F. 
Porter that the remains of his wife Mary be taken to IA, but rather that his 
remains be taken to Oregon for final interment. 

The new information is from the obituary of Benjamin F. Porter. 
C.F.F. Porter and his son Benjamin F. Porter, died hours apart in January of 
1907, in Harrison County Iowa. The obituary of the son, Ben Porter reads in 
part; 

"Benjamin F. Porter died at the family home near Calhoun last night at 10:30 
o'clock, of pneumonia. Mr. Porter was born December 21st, 1860, being thus 
about 47 years of age at the time of his demise. His father C.F.F. Porter also 
died yesterday, but in the morning. The remains will be buried tomorrow in 
the Calhoun cemetery, temporarily, and later both the father and the son will 
be taken to Oregon for final interment." 

The obituary is printed below and also posted to the web at: 
http://www.citlink.net/rvsmoswet/PorterCFF%20&%20BenObitsw.jpg 

In light of this new information and after careful consideration and 
consultation with my mother and other descendants, I now oppose any 
removal of any remains or the headstone from the grave of Mary Ann Porter, 
in The Dalles, Pioneer Cemetery. This was not the dying wish of Claude F. F. 
Porter. Let them both rest in peace. 

Thank you for your consideration. Please let us know your final decision. 

Sincerely, 
Judy Schmoe Swett 
764 Spring Valley Pkwy 
Spring Creek NV 89815 
775-738-7691 
sci a m@citlink.net 

cc: Ms Mirra Meyer mirra.Meyer@state.or.us 
fax # 503-986-0793 
The Dalles City Hall - Dawn Hert - dawn hert@ci.the-dalles.or.us 

i ., n 
\'. ,· 

3 2004 
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From: swett To: City of The Dalles Date: 9/12/2004 Time: 10:24:40 AM 

Obituaries of C.F.F. Porter and son Benjamin F. Porter 
January 1907 

Death of. c, l\ f\. Porter. . 
C~ F. . R, .. Po~r d:i~d .At hi~ 

farm •home· ·nea.r .cathoun: -at. · 
l:30 · t/ clock -tlliS'• • JUo.tn i:n&\ .. of: 

··~~J.:1~:,~;r;9::_i::::;:.;:-:;..:~~ft?'··•: ••:·········· .;: :··. . . . . . .. . . . . . . . I 

.... l~njimii ,!J< l\",r tt~r di•cd at · 
the fafi1:Hy· h(,rnu :i1v1.fr C.aJh(1Un 
lust • .ttig:ht ·at JtL:JO . {l~ ck~:k l :nf: 
J>nfHUYtmlht . Mr; l\1rter :-\Vlt.~~ 

· neornonia ·a6¢d, :69 •·y· e~r.s~ Tbe_:< p ·.··. & ........ . 
. ·ih .. :.. .... J}. . . . .L.... ·.r'q .. t· 1··~~0· . t .... ~ . uvNl .. e.CP.t'n~"r: ~ a:$ , : · :.~ .: .. .oe--. . . . . . . . . . . . ·. . . . . ) . 

. •1 r'h1t. t:_rnii(alxlli_l: 4J·:y¢-ats o'f' 1tg~ • · <1ect1a,se-d .tnov.~d- to_ thJs• c•oun t.y 
from Oregon< three yc·,are,. •ag<\ 
and had ms.de a -large eirc:Ie of 
friends ~by . kind ty d;ispositir.m 
and neighborly co-nduct. .· He 
Je~ves . eight enUdten to .. mourn 
his d.eath. · Tbe funeral will.: be 
held from. .. the · Calhoun :school 
houie_, · Wedr,e&3ia_y; · a·t . . . 10 
o!cloel!, and the remains. w:ill be 
buried in Calhoun CDllnty~ 
Thre(t otber .tnembe.rs are· down 
with .. the . pneumon:i~ one · son. 
pfing. ~:anae.rout~y--foltwith: th~ 
d.u;.imie. 

.
.. itt tbtf d~n .. ~~_01_ 1_1_½~_ -: · dt~rt1_1~, . •f_H~, . 
. f.nthet1 C. F .. F .. Port·(\1~ a]so:died. 
1 yaqle,•rcfo y > hut in tl1tt morn i nI,! · 

I-the rem am~· wiU bo buried tir ., 
.. rnnrr6w· Ul tJ\:tl C":alht1U1l • ceinc; 
· tery, . ten:rt,ontrtl:y, . . ttnd lat.er· 
.•b.o.th::t:lh) ft~ther nud };pt, ,vnl 'bv 
t..ukt•n •utih-(1.:-~mifor·thtu.l iuun~ . 
: m.t·tll. Thti cns,4 i:;; chiulitv: snd 
,' t)il .UCC:i'Hltlt vr '(lw wb,1lc f amii\ . 
.t1:iHJ( _Rld, a.ha. t,lm(~t hvJple~tit 
-\1:r. -Purkr it~nv.i~~ A· tfi f ~. ~}'f1, . . ... . . . ........ :~ . .. . . -~ .. 

· -~ rii t: thuhd-: \er· ttl.~fi ·t l Irv*'~ · . ..,_t·. n.a_·.,,,,.: · . . . •. ·, ' . ...,. . , " . . . .· .... ·· iw' \.; ,:1 
. :d~11dr-(•:tt th. •rtt41~1rn t.h(· fr l9'ss•~ 

• • • •I""-'• ••,• • .• ~.:~•.-:r,••,•,•• •• • •• : . ••~• • ~ •• •:_ .. • 

•• '••'• .................... , ,. • .... u..<.,• ••••••• • • .... · ... ~·. 

•f !l 
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SEP-12-2004 13:14 FROM:CSI LIBRARY 208 736 3087 T0:915412985490 

FAX COVER LETTER 

Number of Pages (Including this Page): _ j 

TO:· 

Name: 

Informatlcm: 

Fax Number: 

FROM: 

Name: 

Information: 

Fax Number: 

MESSAGE= 
.. 
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SEP-12-2004 13:14 FROM:CSI LIBRARY 208 736 3087 TO:915412985490 

September 12~ 2004 

City of The Dalle\ 
Community Dev elopmen.t/Plannin.g 

Rega.rding the Disinterment of Mary Ann Porter buried in.111e Dalles Pi.oncer Cemetery 

Please include this faxed copy as pan of the official record of the public bearing to be held 
September 13, 2004. 

On September 8, 2004, I lea.med of the plans to rem.ave tl1e remains and gravestone of my great~ 
great-grandmother Mary Ann Porter from her grave in Pioneer Cemetery. My initial rcacti.011 was 
shock and dismay. Ju~t last year~ my sister and J visited The Dalles specifically to find and visit 
this very grave. I live in Southem l.daho and my sister lives in.NorthcmNeva.cla. We tnweled 
hundreds of mil.es and I took time off from my work to mflke this trek, We enjoyed our visit to The 
Dalles immensely~ but the mission and highli,ght was to visit our grcat ... grcat grandmother. The 
Pion.eer Cemetery was rather d.iffi.ct1lt to find, but once we did the expedcncc was awesome. We 
found Mary Ann's bcautifol grave ;marker and paid our respects. My sister left some flowers and 
we took som.e ))b.otos. Visiting my grcat ... great grandmother and this historic cemetery was a 
mov1ng experience for rne, l felt the family connecti.on to Mary Ann Porter a.n.d I felt the history of 
the entire cemetery as I looked. at all of the amazing stones and marker~. This was a very personal 
experience~ but I run telling about it S<) that all o:f the people involved in. the process of disinterment 
will know that there is family who care~ who visit and will be profoundly affected. by the removal 
of Mary Ann's remains and graveston.e. 

Documentation has now been found that indicate:.-. it was 110t the wish of Claude Porter to have the 
rem.a.ins of his wife Mary L.1ke11 to Iowa, but that his remains be ta.k~n to Oregon for final 
intc1ment. Based on. that .information.~ convet·sati.ons with fa1:n.ily~ and my pc.rsona1 expe:d.en.ce, I 
wottld opp()Sie any disinterment and removal of remains or gravestone of Mary A1:1n Porter from the 
Pioneer Cemetery. Please let her rest in peace. 

I wotdd have come to Tho Dalles in person to attend. the public hearing but tlw n.otice was so short 
that I could not make ana.ngernen.ts to be away fronl work. I thank you for the opportunity to 
com.ment an.d. pa.rtici.pate. Feel free to contact me if further information is desired. 

Sandy Wapinski 
PO Box 714 
Filer, ID 83328~0714 
(208) 326-5334 



SEP-12-2004 13:14 FROM:CSI LIBRARY 208 736 3087 T0:915412985490 

September 12, 2004 

City of The Dalles 
Community Development/Planning 

Re: Public Hearing for Disinterment of Mary Ann Porter 

Please include faxed copy as part of a11 official records and the Public hearing scheduled 
for September l.3, 2004, in regards to the disinterment of Mary Ann Porter from the 
Pioneer Cemetery. 

Mary Ann Porter was our great,.,grandm.otber.. We believe her grave should be left 
untouched for several .reasons, One of the most important reasons is that Mary Ann's 
husband Claudius and son Benjamin were to be returned. to The DalJe~ for burial after 
their death., according to the 1907 ob.ituaty of the son .. 1t appears th.at C.F.F. Porter n.ever 
intended to remove the remains of his wifcp Mary Ann and take th.etn to Iowa but wished 
to· be buried in Oregon. 

Our family appreciates the historic and sac.red value of the cemetery and the pioneers of 
th.at era and wish to express our wishes that the tombstone, gra.vesite an.d surroundings 
remain undisturbed. Thank you for allowing us to express our opinion. 

Marjorie Schmoe ( Great-Granddaughter) 
P.O. Box32 
Filer~ Idaho, 83328 
Ph. 208--326~525 l 

Betty Tucker (Great-Granddaughter) 
944 South Park Ave. West 
Twin Falls, Idaho 83301 
(208) 733-5061 



SEP-12-2004 13:15 FROM:CSI LIBRARY 208 736 3087 TO:915412985490 P:4/4 

Death of C •. F. F. Potter 
C~ F,. F. &nter d.ied. at his 

farm home n.eal" Ca;lhou;n .et 
l~ o.tclock thi.s1 morn.ing,, .of 
.pneumonia aged 6.9·y.~rs. The 
<l!etea.~ed m.~ed to t:his coun.ty 
from ·O~n tbree years ag(l, 
atrd had rmu:Je a Ja·rge c~rcle of 
fri_ 'Jnda .. by, kindly · 4ia.l)O$iti,on 
and. ne!g:hbm-.ll co•nduct. . He 
f:eav.es -@Jght chHdren· to mourn. 
lri's clea1h. T.b.~.fanend wi:U be 
held from tbe ·C.lhoun schoo.\ 
11ou~ W~ntSday, at 10; 
c,tcloele, affll the re·m~~ w.Ul be 
buried in Calhoun eotinty. 
Three -other members are: down. 
wJ.th ·· the pneumoni, one so·n 
~ting dangerOU$·Jy lick with the 
~ffiase •. 

·~r~·~: .. ·:::, ._. .... ·v:, ·~· II . ,. C 

l~nJnm,i1, t~ ~- 1 ·~,r.t~r di'-"· Mit--i 

the fn-m,dy htu_ne ne•r C1tU,ot2.n. : 

I
; !~t. -~igh~ at lO;aO . :,tldock\ of; 
•imeu.mtJ.ma.. Mr~ I i~rier wns 
I born Decem~t 2ls.trr 1:~GO. ~ 
:I tng t hu~ about ~-1· y·~ars of ft.gt:· : 
:nt ~be thn-Pi ... or )t_i~ demi.~. .~Ii~:: 
· falbet~. C.· f. I··~ P.or.t:~r· al~ d:ied ! 

·1 Y~-~l.:etday ,, but ~:n th~· n,?_ •T.n ing 
1 • r-he· remaut,~- w-,t~ be, bu-ru-d to .. < 

: morrow tn lb.e raibo,10 Ct?ltlC· 1:, 
'ttfr)' ~ b•tn(N.lrnr1-ly, n·nd rater·, 
; both t·h~ C,\t.hcr and· ~un wi.U b(i1 

• 

tuk~n -b:, Or~) .:.~,n for final iutcr"' ·. 
'11.w·nt~ ~n1t11 ru .. ~~ i~ doub1v ,Mti : 

!
010tl uec.:,u·nt. ur'tht~ ,,·h,,te• fandh · 
b~iuJ( 1-kk and almt:t.~1-t ·help.I~ .. 

1 ltr. Pu11.t¥r b·mvt.-"s a -.•df:e,. .gr)~ :1 

. ~n,l d~u~t~~-~r. at~-o thrt~•~· sh~l'~ ' 
::~:·hivd'r~m tu m·«~ur.,n th,.~ir loss.. 
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From: swett To: City of The Dalles 

FACSIMILE COVER PAGE 

To: 

Sent: 

·bject: 

City of The Dalles 

9/12/2004 at 10:24:18 AM 

Mary Ann Porter Disinterment 
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CITY of THE DALLES 
313 COURT STREET 

THE DALLES, OREGON 97058 

(541) 296-5481 

HLC# f'~--ot 

HISTORICAL LANDMARKS APPLICATION 

Application is required for modifications and/or alterations to the exterior of 
certified historic structures and all structures within certified historic 
districts. Additionally, new construction within established historic districts 
are also required to appear before the City of The Dalles Historical 
Landmarks Commission. 

Name: 
Address 
Site Address 
Telephone 

Please describe your project goals. ek,v~ o:;~~~rvwiM/~ f~ fh, Pt1m~: will h~~n£-

How will your project affect the appearance of the building and or site? 
ib-e,,, c;ilc UJ(\I l?t-cLf;f<~ he___ -lo --fbe r-ewtVClfL c>f :f1-.u__, J~ifl\u_, 
Ufnra..,~ G;vv-e,, i u\l l be. :fu.t<k--:: ft\ ,e1,t\.St.L,re ::th.a t: ih--- &:-1~ bM -¼e A 
rt:Jr~ , s ¥ ~ d- kb-C.4: +o 0- ~ OV\ f} N,.Q ~-fu k ,,,. 

What efforts are being made to maintain the historic character of this structure? 

V\tJ+, ti ff\ ,-e,a,£i_ R < , na $ btv1 d:Yv/e., \'v\. VO \ vrk ()) \ ~ fu "'s t.:Q_~ f l~- c~--tiu1.-- . 

What is the current use of this property? 

Will the use change as a result of approval of this application? Ye 



List any known archeological resources on site. 

The review criteria for each application are the Secretary of the Interior's Standards. 
These standards have been adopted by City Ordinance 94-1194 as local review criteria. 

I certify that the above information is correct and submit this application with nine 
(9) copies of a site plan drawn to scale, nine (9) copies of detailed, elevation drawings 
with proposed changes, and nine (9) current color photographs ( 4X6 inch 
minimum) of the building/structure front. 

Applicant Date 

CA+-y l /k, ~1-zs - ~;to OW\~· 
Owner (if not the applicant) 

-, have reviewed the above application and certify that it is complete and accepted for 





TO: 

FROM: 

CITY of THE DALLES 

STAFF REPORT 
HISTORIC LANDMARKS REVIEW #85-04 

The Dalles City Park 

The Dalles Historic Landmarks Commission 

Dawn Marie Hert, Associate Planner 
Community Development Department 

313 COURT STREET 

THE DALLES, OR 97058 

(541) 296-5481 

HEARING DATE: September 13, 2004 

ISSUE: 

SYNOPSIS: 
APPLICANT 

Request to remove remains (if any), and headstone of pioneer Mary 
A. Porter from the Pioneer Cemetery to be re-interred in the 
Calhoun Cemetery in Harrison City, Iowa. 

Sunne J. Preston 
PROPERTY OWNER City of The Dalles 
LOCATION 220 E. 10th Street 
ZONING RH/CFO 
EXISTING USE Pioneer Cemetery 
SURROUNDING USE Residential & Community College 
HISTORIC STATUS Locally landmarked in 1989, registered with Oregon 

Pioneer Cemetery Board (now the Oregon Commission on 
Historic Cemeteries.) 

NOTIFICATION: Published advertisement in local newspaper; notification to property 
owners within 100 feet, SHPO. 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval, with conditions, based on the following findings 
of fact. 

BACKGROUND: The historic name of this site is The Pioneer Cemetery. The 
applicant is requesting the disinterment of her great grandmother 
Mary A. Porter to be re-interred at a cemetery in Iowa next to the 
deceased's husband. Mary A. (Puckett) Porter was born 3/22/1840 
and died September 24, 1897 at the age of 57 of an infection. 

Staff Report HLC 85-04 

Mary's husband Cladius and his brother Zacharies decided to take 
their families west circa. 1880 and followed the Oregon Trail in 
covered wagons settling just west of The Dalles. The Porter family 
returned to Iowa around the tum or the century and lived in Harrison 
County , Iowa. Before Cladius' death in 1907, he requested that his 
daughter Jessie bring Mary's remains home to Iowa to be buried. It 

Sunne J. Preston - Pioneer Cemetery Page 1 of 5 



was the families understanding that this was in the form of a 
promise. Times were tough and this promise was not able to be 
kept. At this time, the great-granddaughter Sunne has the resources 
and skills to keep this promise with the assistance of other family 
members. 

ANALYSIS: The Historic Landmarks Commission is responsible for conducting hearings 
dealing with proposed alterations to designated historic landmarks. City of The Dalles 
General Ordinance 94-1194 will serve as a tool to help the Commission make these 
decisions. The purpose of the Historic Landmarks Commission, the Historic Ordinance 
and the review criteria are to: 
• Protect historic and cultural resources from destruction, inappropriate alteration, and 

incompatible adjacent development; , 
• Stabilize and improve property values in historic districts and citywide; 
• Enhance the city 's attractiveness to visitors and residents, and stimulate business, 

industry and tourism; 
• Educate The Dalles ' citizens and visitors concerning the city's heritage; 
• Preserve the historic housing stock of The Dalles; 
• Comply with The Dalles comprehensive Plan regarding historic resources under 

Statewide Planning Goal 5. 

CITY OF THE DALLES GENERAL ORDINANCE 94-1194-AN ORDINANCE 
RELATING TO HISTORIC RESOURCES WITHIN THE CITY OF THE DALLES 

Section 7, Subsection A. Review Criteria: 

"Secretary's Standards. Commission decisions shall be based on the Secretary of the 
Interior's Guidelines for the Treatment of Historic Properties." The following are pertinent 
standards from the "Guide". 

1. A property shall be used as it was historically or be given a new use that requires 
minimal change to its distinctive materials, features, spaces, and spatial relationships. 

FINDING A-1: The use for this site will remain the same and be used as a Pioneer 
Cemetery. The applicant is proposing to disinter her great grandmother and 
relocate her remains, if any, back to Iowa to be laid to rest with her great­
grandfather (the deceased's husband). The headstone will be removed and taken 
with the remains. The vacant grave will be left and the basalt rock that the 
headstone sat upon will also remain. This will be addressed as a condition of 
approval. 

Staff Report HLC 85-04 
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2. The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved. The removal of 
historic materials or alterations to features and spaces that characterize a property shall 
be avoided. 

FINDING-AZ: The historic character of the property will be retained and the site 
where the pioneer laid will be preserved. Under State law, the headstone and 
remains are the property of the family. Removal of Mary Porter's remains and 
headstone will be allowed with the approval of the Oregon Department of Human 
Resources Health Division and the Oregon Commission of Historic Cemeteries. 

3. Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use. 
Changes that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding conjectural 
features or architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be undertaken. 

FINDING-A3: This property is recognized as a physical record of its time and no 
changes either conjectural or otherwise are proposed. 

4. Changes to a property that have acquired historic significance in their own right shall 
he retained and preserved. 

FINDING-A4: No such changes are proposed with this application. The only 
change involves removal of the headstone and remains of Mary Porter. 

5. Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 
craftsmanship that characterize a property shall he preserved. 

FINDING-AS: This proposal does not seek to alter any of the above. No historic 
materials will be changed; no structures are involved in this review. The only 
significant feature that is being proposed to be removed is the headstone. The 
craftsmanship of the headstone will be required to be well documented with 
photographs to remain in the City's Historic Pioneer Cemetery file. This will be 
addressed as a condition of approval. 

6. Deteriorating historical features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where the 
severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature 
shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, where 
possible, materials. Replacement of missing features shall be substantiated by 
documentary and physical evidence. 

FINDING-A6: The applicant is not repairing or replacing any missing historical 
features. Therefore, this criterion does not apply. 

7. Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting that cause damage to historic 
materials shall not be used. The surf ace cleaning of structures, if appropriate, shall be 
undertaken using the gentlest means possible. 

FINDING-A 7: The applicant proposes no chemical or physical treatments and no 
structures will be affected by this application. Therefore, this criterion does not 
apply. 

Staff Report HLC 85-04 
Sunne J. Preston - Pioneer Cemetery Page 3 of 5 



8. Significant archaeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and 
preserved. lfsuch resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be 
undertaken. 

FINDING A8:'No archaeological resources are expected to be affected by this 
proposal, other than the remains of Mary Porter. The applicant is responsible to 
notify the appropriate authorities if an archaeological resource is found in the 
excavation. 

9. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy 
historic materials that characterize the property. The new work shall be differentiated 
from the old and shall be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and architectural 
features to protect the historic integrity of the property and its environment 

FINDING-A9: The applicant is not proposing an addition or new construction. 
Therefore, this criterion does not apply. 

10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in such 
a manner that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic 
property and its environment would be unimpaired. 

FINDING-AlO: The applicant is not proposing an addition or new construction. 
Therefore, this criterion does not apply. 

CONCLUSIONS: Removal of the remains of Mary A. Porter will not affect the historic 
nature of integrity of the Pioneer Cemetery. As with any disinterment, the remains and 
headstone are the property of the family. Staff has determined that the disinterment of 
Mary A. Porter and her headstone be approved with the following conditions: 

Proposed Conditions of Approval: 

1. Work will be completed in substantial conformance to the proposals as submitted 
and reviewed. 

2. Photographs of the site and disinterment will be required for proper documentation 
of the historic plot. The City will provide an individual to be at the disinterment to 
photograph the site and the event. 

3. The ~e~ains will need to be excavated and handled by a lic_e~~d1~ neral se~ ice 
practitioner. ~Y""e)#,~ 

4. The use of a backhoe or tractor will be prohibite1 The excavation should be in a 
workmanlike manner with the utmost care and consideration of the surrounding 
gravesites. After the excavation and removal of the remains, the applicant will be 
required to return the site to as near the previous state as possible. 

5. Prior to excavation approvals will need to be made by the Oregon Department of 
Human Services- Health Division, and the Oregon Commission on Historic 
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Cemeteries. Copies of these approvals will need to be provided to the Planning 
Department for the application file. 

6. Any discovered archeological resources or materials, other than the remains, will 
need to -be profession ly evaluated rior to any continued excavation at the site. 

7. The applicant · · · headstone at 
the family plot that has the essential info~ation of Mary Porter and the <lat~ she _ _,,~~ 
was disinterred, for historical purposes. ~ ~ 1 ~ ~ ~~ . J 

M fthe family chooses to have the headstone replaced, they may also do so with the 
11

~ fl("' 

/ llpproval of the Historic Landmarks Commission. U)loP~ 

~- IJW}-~ ~ 
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HISTORIC LANDMARKS RESOLUTION NO. 81-04 

APPROVING THE DALLES HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION APPLICATION 
#HLC 85-04 

The applicant, Sunne J. Preston will disinter her Great Grandmother, Mary A. Porter, from the 
Pioneer Cemetery, remove the remains & have them cremated. The cremated remains and the 
headstone will be transported by family members and placed with her Great Grandfather 
Claudius Porter in the Calhoun Cemetery in Harrison County, Iowa. 

The Pioneer Cemetery is located to the East of 420 E. Scenic Drive and is further described as 
lN 13E 10 BB tax lot 600. 

I. RECITALS: 

A. The Historic Landmarks Commission of the City of The Dalles has, on September 13, 
2004 conducted a public hearing to consider the above request. 

B. A Staff report was presented, stating findings of fact and conclusions of law. 

C. Staff Report number 85-04 and the minutes of September 13, 2004, upon approval, 
provide the basis for this re~olution and are herein attached by reference. 

II. RESOLUTION: Now, Therefore, be it FOUND, DETERMINED, and ORDERED by the 
Historic Landmarks Commission of the City of The Dalles as follows: 

A. In all respects as set forth in Recitals, Part "I" of this resolution. 
B. Historic Landmarks Review No. HLC 85-04 of City of The Dalles is hereby 

approved with the following conditions: 
1. Work will be completed in substantial conformance to the proposals as submitted and 

reviewed. 
2. Photographs of the site and disinterment will be required for proper documentation of the 

historic plot. The City will provide an individual to be at the disinterment to photograph 
the site and the event. 

3. The remains will need to be excavated and handled by a licensed funeral service 
practitioner. 

4. The use of a backhoe or tractor will be prohibited. The excavation should be in a 
workmanlike manner with the utmost care and consideration of the surrounding 
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graves~tes. After the excavation and removal of the remains, the applicant will be 
requfred to return the site to as near the previous state as possible. 

5. Prj.6r to excavation approvals will need to be made by the Oregon Department of Human 
Services-Health Division, and the Oregon Commission on Historic Cemeteries. Copies 
of these approvals will need to be provided to the Planning Department for the 
application file. · 

6. Any discovered archeological resources or materials, other than the remains, will need to 
be professionally evaluated prior to any continued excavation at the site. 

7. The applicant will give the City the permission to place a marker or headstone at the 
family plot that has the essential information of Mary Porter and the date she was 
.disinterred, for historical purposes. 

8. ff the family chooses to have the headstone replaced, they may also do so with the 
approval of the Historic Landmarks Commission. 

III. APPEALS, COMPLIANCE AND PENALTIES: 

A. Any party of record may appeal a decision of the Historic Landmarks Commission 
to the City Council for review. Appeals must be made in accordance to Section 
9(a) of the Historic Landmarks Ordinance No. 1194, and must be filed with City 

Clerk within ten (10) days of the date of mailing of this Order. 

B. Failure to exercise this approval within the time line set either by Order or by 
Ordinance will invalidate this permit. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 13Th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2004. 

Eric Gleason, Chairman 
Historic Landmarks Commission 

I, Dan Durow, Director of the Community Development Department of the City of the Dalles, 
hereby certify that the foregoing Order was adopted at the meeting of the City Historic 
Landmarks Commission, held on September 13, 2004. 

AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
ATTEST: 
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